
            
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Billy Bain                   Councilman Bob Best 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner           Councilman Jaime Petralanda 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, January 25, 2016 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Invocation: Mayor Garcia 
 

Salute to the Flag: Students from All Angels’ Academy will lead the audience in the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag  
 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 
 A) Presentation of Certificate of Recognition to Eric Richey for 27 Years of Advisory 
Board Member service 
 
 B) Proclamation presentation to “Pioneer” Betty Barnette Roper on her 90th Birthday  
 
 C) Yard of the Month Award for February 2016 – 581 La Baron Drive – Lionel and 
Alma Espinoza 
 
4. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign the 
register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) January 11, 2016 – Regular Meeting  

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None. 
 
7. Public Hearings:  None. 
    
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted) 
   
 A) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an increase to the City's current 
open purchase order with The Anderson’s, Inc., in an amount of $ 5,000, for micro granulated 
fertilizers for the greens at the Miami Springs Country Club as funds were budgeted in the 
FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code  



9. Old Business:  
 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 
B) Major Project Updates  
 
 1) Pool Progress; Report by Jorge Ferrer 
 
 2) Quiet Zone 
 
 3)   Westward Drive Bike Path 
 
 4)  Prince Field Tot Lot 
 
 5) City-wide ADA Sidewalk Ramps 
 
 6) Curtiss Mansion Parking Lot 
 
 7) FEMA Floodplain  
 
 8) Canal Bank Restoration  
 

10. New Business:    
  
 A) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Amending The Current Schedule Of Charges For Building, Plumbing, Electrical, Mechanical And 
Other Related Permit Charges Or Fees; Effective Date 
 
 B) Request that Council approve a Site Plan for the construction of a 73,484 sq. ft., 
127-room hotel, located in the Abraham Tract at 3449 NW 42 Avenue 
 
 C) Request that Council gives direction to staff to clarify the future of certain election 
processes 
 
 D) Request that Council consider a proposed amendment to Code Section 34-17: 
Employee Disciplinary Action 
 
 E) Request that Council consider restrictions on impervious coverings/surfaces in rear 
yard areas of residential homesites 
 
 F) Recommendation by Public Works that Council approve an expenditure in an 
amount not to exceed $172,900.00, to Mendoza Boulders, the lowest responsible quote after 
obtaining three written quotes (attached), for rock for Phase I - North Esplanade Canal Bank 
Restoration between North Royal Poinciana Blvd. and Westward Drive, as funds are being 
provided by the State of Florida, Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Water 
Restoration Assistance Grant on a cost reimbursement basis, pursuant to Section §31.11 
(C)(2) of the City Code 
 
 G) Request for funding by Sarah Vargas for the Great Tomato Festival in the amount 
of $1,230.00 
 



 H) Consideration of the Board of Parks and Parkways Recommendations for the Yard 
of the Month Awards for February, March, and April 2016 
 
 I) Request by Blessed Trinity for full closure of the circle on May 7, 2016 from 5:00 
p.m. to 11:00 p.m. for the Christian Worship and Concert 
 
11. Other Business:  
 
 A) Consideration of Canceling/Rescheduling the February 8, 2016 Council Meeting 
  
12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 
13. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please visit www.miamisprings-fl.gov for current meeting schedule or follow us on             Twitter @MIAMISPRINGSFL 
******************************************************************************************************* 
Live streaming video of this meeting is available at http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Anyone wishing to obtain a copy of an agenda item may contact the City Clerk at (305) 805-5006, download the complete agenda packet from 
www.miamisprings-fl.gov or view the materials at City Hall during regular business hours. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0114, the City Council provides the public with a reasonable opportunity to be heard on all matters. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
If any person decides to appeal any decision of this Board with respect to any matter considered, s/he will need a record of the proceedings and for such 

purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is made (F. S. 286.0105), all of which the City does not provide. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the 

City Clerk, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166.  Telephone: (305) 805-5006, no later than seven (7) days prior to the proceeding. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Pursuant to Sec. 2-11.1 (S) of the Miami-Dade County Code and Miami Springs Code of Ordinances Chapter 33 - §33-20, all persons, firms or 
corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or 

decision of the City Council; (2) any action, decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of 
City personnel during the time period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or recommendation which will be heard or reviewed 
by the City Council, or a City Board or Committee shall register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose 

and shall state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of each person or entity which has employed said 
registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been employed to lobby.  A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the 

Office of the City Clerk. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/


 
Proclamation 

By the Mayor of the City of Miami Springs 
 
 
WHEREAS, exemplary achievements made by individuals symbolize the 

characteristics which make our community a thriving City, hence it is essential that they be 
praised and recognized for making a difference in our midst; and,  

 
WHEREAS, Betty Barnette Roper first moved to Miami Springs in 1945 

where she rented a home on the 600 block of South Drive; and,  
 
WHEREAS, she then bought her home at 561 Glen Drive and has been 

a resident of Miami Springs for 68 years; and,  
 
WHEREAS, on May 10, 1993, Betty was awarded the Pioneer Resident 

Award by the Historic Preservation Board; and,  
 
WHEREAS, was born on December 5, 1925 and recently celebrated her 

90th birthday; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council and citizens of Miami Springs honor a 
longtime resident and recognize her outstanding service to the community and extend best 
wishes on her 90th birthday, 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor of the City of Miami 

Springs, Florida, do hereby proclaim January 11, 2016 as 
 

 “BETTY BARNETTE ROPER DAY” 
 
in Miami Springs and in observance thereof,  I call upon the citizens of Miami Springs to join 
me in celebrating and recognizing Betty Barnette Roper on this very special occasion. 
 
 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the 
Seal of the City of Miami Springs, Florida to be affixed this 11th day of January, 2016. 
 

 
____________________ 
      Zavier M. Garcia 
           Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 
 Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
            City Clerk 
 



 
CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 

 
Presented to 

 

Lionel and Alma Espinosa 
 

Of 
 

581 La Baron Drive 
 

for her home being designated as 
 

“YARD OF THE MONTH” 
FEBRUARY, 2016 

 
Presented this 25th day of February, 2016. 

 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
                              Zavier M. Garcia 
                                     Mayor 

ATTEST: 

                     
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
                 City Clerk  



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, January 11, 2016 7:00 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:03 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Bob Best 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilwoman Roslyn Buckner 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
City Manager Ronald K. Gorland 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
Recreation Director Omar Luna 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Vice Mayor Bain 
 

Salute to the Flag: Students from Miami Springs Elementary School lead the 
audience in the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 

 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 
 A) Presentation of Certificate of Sincere Appreciation Plaque to Police Captain 
Jonathan Kahn in Recognition of 36 Years of Dedicated Service to the City of Miami 
Springs 
 
Captain Jonathan Kahn was not available to receive the plaque, the Chief made sure 
to make arrangements to have it delivered. 
 
 B) Presentation of Certificate of Sincere Appreciation Plaque to Police 
Lieutenant Randall J. Walker, Jr. in Recognition of 36 Years of Dedicated Service to the 
City of Miami Springs 
 
After welcoming remarks, Mayor Garcia presented Lt. Walker with a plaque 
recognizing his years of service and Chief Guzman then presented Lt. Walker with 
his retired Police badge with the rank of Captain. 
 

C) Swearing in Ceremony for newly hired Miami Springs Police Officer Eliezer 
Lopez 



 
 2 

 
After welcoming remarks, Chief of Police Armando Guzman administered the Oath of 
Office to Police Officer Eliezer Lopez. 
 
 D) Promotion of Miami Springs Police; Captain, Lieutenant, Sergeant 
 
Chief Guzman was proud to announce the promotions of several officers.  He 
announced that the new Sergeant is Officer Erik Estok, the new Lieutenant is 
Sergeant Claire Gurney, and the new Captain is Lieutenant John Mulla. 
 
 E) Proclamation presentation to “Pioneer” Betty Barnette Roper on her 90th 
Birthday 

 
Mrs. Roper was not available to accept the proclamation and will be rescheduled for 
another meeting. 

 
F) Yard of the Month Award for January 2016 – 69 Hunting Lodge Drive – 

Armando Lapido 
 
Mr. Armando Lapido was not present to receive the Certificate of Recognition from 
Mayor Garcia. 

 
4. Open Forum:  
 
The following members of the public addressed the City Council:  Ann Aguila, 901 Oriole 
Avenue, Nery Owens, 169 Corydon Drive, Jim Durdan, 308 Payne Drive, Donna 
Hernandez, 769 Pinecrest Drive, Robert Sami, 340 Payne Drive, Mark Moreno, 348 Payne 
Drive, Sarah Vargas, 33 Whitethorn Drive, Julie Trujillo, 721 Lenape Drive, Danny Gomez, 
699 Ludlum Drive, Angie Morales, 65 Whitethorn Drive, Marie Garcia Estrada, 900 Apache 
Street. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) December 14, 2015 – Regular Meeting 

 
Councilman Best moved to approve the minutes.  Councilman Petralanda seconded 
the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: 
 
 A) Board of Adjustment – Approval of Actions Taken at their Meeting of January 
4, 2016 Subject to the 10-day Appeal Period 

 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to approve the actions taken by the Board of Appeals on 
January 4, 2016.  Councilman Buckner seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on 
roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, 
Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 

 
 



 
 3 

B)   Board of Appeals – Case # 18-V-15 
Kathie and Martin L. Marquez – 401 Hunting Lodge Drive 

Zoning: R-1B 
Lot Size: 8,159 Sq. Ft 

 
Applicant is seeking variances in order to enlarge an existing single family house. 
 
The Council sat as the Board of Appeals at 8:44 p.m.  The Mayor reconvened the City 
Council meeting at 9:40 p.m. 

 
7. Public Hearings: None at this time. 
 
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted) 
  
 A) Approval of City Attorney’s Invoice for December 2015 in the Amount of 
$12,953.25 
 
 B) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council award a Bid to Don 
Reid Ford, Inc., utilizing Florida Sheriffs Association Bid Award Announcement #15-23-
0904 in the amount of $113,356.00, for four (4) 2016 Ford Police Interceptor Utility AWD 
(K8A) vehicles, as these funds were approved in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section 
31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 
 
 C) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council award a Bid to 
Signal Technology Enterprises, Inc., utilizing (piggybacking) City of Miami Bid No. 270252 
(16) in the amount of $25,325.18, for emergency equipment and installation for the four 
new 2016 For Police Interceptor Utility AWD (K8A) vehicles, as these funds were approved 
in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 
 
The City Manager read all items by title for the record. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Councilwoman Buckner 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
9. Old Business:  
 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 
There were no appointments at this time. 

 
B) Presentation from Alfredo and Pavlina Alea of additional designs per 

Council’s request for entry column for New Aquatic Facility 
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to approve selection #1 “Aquanaut” for the front entrance 
column.  Mayor Garcia passed the gavel to Councilman Best.  Mayor Garcia 
seconded the motion, which failed 2-3 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain and Mayor Garcia voting Yes; Councilman Best, Councilwoman 
Buckner, and Councilman Petralanda voting No. 



 
 4 

 
Councilman Best moved to approve selection #3 “Mermaid” for the front entrance 
column.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call 
vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman 
Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
Vice Mayor Bain moved to select all four suggested designs for the front entrance 
fence.  Councilman Best seconded the motion, which carried 3-2 on roll call vote.  
The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, and Mayor Garcia 
voting Yes; Councilwoman Buckner and Councilman Petralanda voting No. 
 
10. New Business:  
  
 A) Request from Elaine Martin for the partial closure of the circle for the Relay 
for Life event in March 
 
Councilman Petralanda moved to approve the request for partial closure on March 
12th.  Councilman Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   
The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman 
Buckner, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 B) Recommendation by Finance that Council authorize the execution of an 
agreement with Waterfront Property Services, LLC d/b/a Gator Dredging, piggybacking with 
the City of Fort Lauderdale utilizing contract #233-11070 (attached), in the amount of 
$500,000.00, for Phase I - North Esplanade Canal (beginning at North Royal Poinciana 
Blvd. heading south and ending at Westward Drive) of the Canal Bank Restoration Project, 
to stabilize the collapsing embankments and construct a more permanent solution to 
dilapidating canal banks as funds were made available through the State of Florida, DEP, 
Division of Water Restoration Assistance (on a cost reimbursement basis with no match 
requirement) which were approved by Council on the December 14th, 2015 meeting 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the recommendation.  Councilwoman Buckner 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.   The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Bain, Councilman Best, Councilwoman Buckner, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 

 
10.  Other Business: None at this time. 
  

 11. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney  
 
The City Attorney had nothing to report at this time. 
 

B) City Manager 
 
City Manager Gorland wished everyone a Happy New Year. 
  

C) City Council 
 
Councilman Bain requested verbatim minutes of the December 14th discussion about the 
Prince Field Tot Lot.  He requested a clean-up on the canal banks on Melrose and that the 



 
 5 

County was doing a great job on the Ludlum canal bush cleaning.  He wished everyone a 
Happy New Year. 
 
Councilwoman Buckner wished everyone a Happy New Year. 
 
Councilman Petralanda requested that the tot lot stop being demolished.  He would like to 
have inspections requested by the Florida League of Cities and/or an inspector.   
 
Mayor Garcia spoke addressed some of the concerns on the Prince Field Tot Lot.  He 
encouraged the public to review the previous meeting on December 14th.  He requested 
that the misinformation on the flyer that was circulated by Donna Hernandez should be 
addressed.   
   
Vice Mayor Best recognized the Police Chief for all his efforts and the great strides he is 
making in the Police Department.  He wished everyone a Happy New Year. 
 
 
 
 
13. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 25th day of January, 2016. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 





    

 
 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: 305.805.5006 
Fax: 305.805.5028 

 

 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM:  Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, City Clerk  
 
DATE:  December 9, 2015 
 
SUBJECT: PENDING BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
************************************************************************************************************************************** 
The following appointments are pending: 

 NEW               ORIGINAL   LAST 
APPOINTMENT CURRENT  TERM  APPOINTMENT      APPOINTMENT 
COUNCILMEMBER  MEMBER     EXPIRES     DATE           DATE        
 
Board of Adjustment/Zoning and Planning Board   
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Juan Molina  04-30-2018 01-29-2015 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Bob Calvert  04-30-2018 01-28-2013 11-09-2015 
Bain Vice Mayor   Ernie Aloma  04-30-2016 04-13-2009 01-11-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Bill Tallman  04-30-2016 01-11-2010 05-14-2012 
Councilman Petralanda  Manuel Pérez-Vichot 04-30-2017 12-14-1998 11-09-2015 
Mayor Garcia   Alejandro J. Gonzalez 10-31-2017 12-03-2015 12-03-2015  
 
Architectural Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Marc Scavuzzo*  10-31-2016  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Valentine Soler  10-31-2016  01-14-2013 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Joe Valencia*  10-31-2016  02-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Fredy Albiza*  10-31-2016  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Ana Paula Ibarra * 10-31-2016  10-10-2011 11-09-2015 
 
Code Enforcement Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Jorge Filgueira*  11-30-2017  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Walter Dworak  09-30-2016  11-14-2005 09-14-2010 
Councilman Best   Marlene B. Jiménez 09-30-2018  03-02-2005 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   John Bankston  09-30-2017  09-23-2002 11-09-2015  
Councilman Bain   Rhonda Calvert  09-30-2017  09-25-2006 11-09-2015  
Councilwoman Buckner Jacqueline Martinez Regueira 09-30-2018  06-09-2003 11-09-2015   
Councilman Petralanda  Robert (Bob) Williams 09-30-2016  03-10-2008 10-25-2010 
 
Code Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  04-30-2018   
Councilman Best   Maria (Nuñez) Garrett 04-30-2017 05-08-2009 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Arthur Freyre  04-30-2017 05-19-2009 05-09-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Dan Dorrego  04-30-2016 08-11-2003 05-24-2010 
Councilman Petralanda  Jana Armstrong  04-30-2016 06-11-2001 05-10-2010 
 
Disability Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  12-31-2016  
Councilman Best   Catherine Stadnik 12-31-2016 12-14-1998 02-14-2011 
Vice Mayor Bain   Grace Bain  12-31-2016 01-13-2014 01-13-2014 
Councilwoman Buckner  Richard Barnes  12-31-2016 05-11-2009 01-24-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Thomas W. Cannon 12-31-2016   
 
 



 
Ecology Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Wendy Anderson Booher*04-30-2018 01-12-2009 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Trina Aguila  04-30-2018 10-28-2013 11-09-2015   
Vice Mayor Bain   Carl Malek*  04-30-2017 11-22-2010 05-09-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Marielys Acosta  04-30-2016 09-09-2013 09-09-2013 
Councilman Petralanda  Michael Kobiakov 04-30-2016 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 
Education Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Alyssa C. Roelans 05-31-2017 02-17-2015 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Constantino Hernandez 05-31-2017 04-27-2015 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Dr. Mara Zapata* 05-31-2017 06-13-2011 11-09-2015  
Councilwoman Buckner  Ilia Molina   05-31-2017 02-05-2015 11-09-2015  
Councilman Petralanda   Steve Owens  05-31-2017 05-13-2013 11-09-2015 
 
Golf and Country Club Advisory Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Michael Domínguez* 07-31-2017 04-12-2010 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Mark Safreed  07-30-2017 08-08-2005 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   George Heider  07-31-2017 08-13-2001 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Ken Amendola*  07-31-2017 10-10-2011 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Art Rabade  07-31-2017 03-11-2013 11-09-2015 
 
Historic Preservation Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Sydney Garton  01-31-2016 11-08-1993 02-08-2010 
Councilman Best   Charles M. Hill  02-28-2018 03-08-2004 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Yvonne Shonberger 02-28-2017 06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner  Dr. James Watson 02-28-2018 06-09-2014 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Jo Ellen Phillips  01-31-2016 2-14-2013 08-26-2013 
 
Board of Parks & Parkways 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Eric Richey  04-30-2018 02-13-1989 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Tammy K. Johnston 04-30-2018 04-27-2006 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Lynne V. Brooks* 04-30-2018 08-08-2011 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Irene Priess  04-30-2017 08-13-2001 04-25-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Lee Fisher  04-30-2017 03-23-2015 03-23-2015   
 
Recreation Commission 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  E. Jorge Santin  04-30-2016 04-14-2008 12-13-2010 
Councilman Best   Mark A. Johnston 04-30-2018 04-22-2013 04-22-2013 
Vice Mayor Bain   Dr. Stephanie Kondy 04-30-2017 06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner   Miguel Becerra  04-30-2017 09-09-2015 09-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Alexander Anthony 04-30-2016 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 
 * Architectural Review Board 
  Ecology Board - Council confirmation required per §32.40  
  Education Advisory Board - Council confirmation required per §32.99 (A) 
  Board of Parks and Parkways – Council confirmation required per §32.30  
   
  “No Board/Commission member who shall have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to serve 

an additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be 
confirmed by a majority of the City Council.” 

 







 1 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2016 -  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS AMENDING THE CURRENT SCHEDULE 
OF CHARGES FOR BUILDING, PLUMBING, ELECTRICAL, 
MECHANICAL AND OTHER RELATED PERMIT CHARGES 
OR FEES; EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 659-82 was passed on May 10, 1982, authorizing and 

directing the establishment and maintenance of a “Schedule of Charges” for Building, 
Plumbing, Electrical, Mechanical and other related permits issued by the City; and, 

 
WHEREAS, as currently codified in a Code of Ordinance Section 151.07, Ordinance 

No. 659-82 further authorized and directed the adoption of a current ”Schedule of Charges” 
from time to time by City Council Resolution; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the most current “Schedule of Charges” was established on December 

14, 2015 by the adoption of City Resolution No. 2015-3661; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Miami Springs is desirous of amending 

the City’s current “Schedule of Charges” as authorized by Code of Ordinance Section 
151.07: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA: 
 
Section 1:   That the revised Schedule of Charges for Building, Plumbing, Electrical, 

Mechanical and other related permits and fees attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby 
approved and adopted. 

 
Section 2:   That the provisions of this Resolution shall become effective March 1, 

2016. 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, Florida, 

this   day of   , 2016, on a motion by     and seconded by  
   . 

 
 
 
Vice Mayor Bain        
Councilman Best        
Councilwoman Buckner       
Councilman Petralanda       
Mayor Garcia       



 

1 | P a g e    Revised 12/3/15 

 
 
 
 
              

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
 
      
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 



 

2 | P a g e    Revised 12/3/15 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                    CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
                     201 Westward Drive 

                 Miami Springs, Florida 33166 
         Building Processing Department 

              

 
 

PROPOSED 
FEE SCHEDULE 

 

 

 

 
 
 



 

3 | P a g e    Revised 12/3/15 

Table of Contents 
BUILDING PERMITS FEES ............................................................................................... 3 

General Maintenance and Repairs ........................................................................................ 3 
Upfront Processing Fee ......................................................................................................... 3 
Structural Processing Fee ...................................................................................................... 3 
New Construction or Additions Fees ..................................................................................... 3 

GENERAL FEES ...............................................................................................................................4  
Patios ..................................................................................................................................... 4 
Driveways .............................................................................................................................. 4 
Wood Decks .......................................................................................................................... 4 
Aluminum Roofs .................................................................................................................... 4 
Awnings ................................................................................................................................. 4 
Windows ............................................................................................................................... 4 
Doors ..................................................................................................................................... 4 
Shutters ................................................................................................................................. 4 
Roof and Roof repairs ........................................................................................................... 4 
Air Conditioning Screens ....................................................................................................... 4 
Masonry Fences .................................................................................................................... 4 
Chain Link Fences .................................................................................................................. 4 
Signs ...................................................................................................................................... 4 
Demolition............................................................................................................................. 4 
Utility Sheds .......................................................................................................................... 4 

ALTERATIONS AND REPAIRS FEES ..................................................................................................5 
MINIMUM PERMIT FEES ...............................................................................................................5 
MISCELLANEOUS FEES ...................................................................................................................5 

Re-inspections ....................................................................................................................... 5 
Double fees ........................................................................................................................... 5 
Lost Plans .............................................................................................................................. 5 
Revisions ............................................................................................................................... 5 
Extension ............................................................................................................................... 5 
Renewals ............................................................................................................................... 5 
CO/CTO ................................................................................................................................. 5 
Permit card Replacement ...................................................................................................... 5 
Change of contractor ............................................................................................................ 5 
Forty Year Certification ......................................................................................................... 6 
Courtesy Inspection .............................................................................................................. 6 
Change of use and occupational license inspection ............................................................. 6 
Construction competition bond ............................................................................................ 6 
Special Projects ..................................................................................................................... 6 
Conditional Re-Occupancy Agreement ................................................................................. 6 
Conditional Code Compliance Agreement ............................................................................ 6 
Unsafe structures board filing ............................................................................................... 6 
Technology fee ...................................................................................................................... 6 
Scanning fee .......................................................................................................................... 7 
After Hour Inspection Fee ..................................................................................................... 7 

REFUND ........................................................................................................................................7 
ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES .............................................................................................. 7 

Minimum Fee ........................................................................................................................ 7 
Services ................................................................................................................................. 7 
Switchboards ......................................................................................................................... 7 
Rough wiring outlets ............................................................................................................. 7 
Low voltage systems ............................................................................................................. 7 
Equipment outlets or permanent connections ..................................................................... 7 
Air conditioners ..................................................................................................................... 8 



 

4 | P a g e    Revised 12/3/15 

Generators ............................................................................................................................ 8 
Welding machine outlets ...................................................................................................... 8 
Special purpose outlets ......................................................................................................... 8 
Temporary work on circuses, carnivals, outdoor events ...................................................... 8 
Fixtures .................................................................................................................................. 8 
Plug mold and strip lighting .................................................................................................. 8 
Satellite Antenna grounding ................................................................................................. 9 
Demolitions, removal of electrical circuits, per floor ............................................................ 9 
Swimming pools, spas, and hot tubs ..................................................................................... 9 

PLUMBING PERMITS FEES ............................................................................................. 9 
Residential/Commercial ........................................................................................................ 9 
Water treatment plants ........................................................................................................ 9 
Grease trap............................................................................................................................ 9 
Interceptors ........................................................................................................................... 9 
Wells...................................................................................................................................... 9 
Sewer connection .................................................................................................................. 9 
Water service ........................................................................................................................ 9 
Sewer capping ....................................................................................................................... 9 
Septic tank ............................................................................................................................. 9 
Soakage pit ............................................................................................................................ 9 
Catch basin ............................................................................................................................ 9 
Interceptor-grease-oil ........................................................................................................... 9 
Solar water heaters ............................................................................................................... 9 
Heat recovery systems .......................................................................................................... 9 
Pool Piping ............................................................................................................................ 9 
Drain field .............................................................................................................................. 9 
Pump and abandon septic tank ............................................................................................ 9 
Roof drains & area drains ..................................................................................................... 9 
Lawn sprinkler system ........................................................................................................... 9 
Backflow prevention ............................................................................................................. 9 
Fire sprinklers ........................................................................................................................ 10 

MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES ........................................................................................... 10 
Air conditioning and refrigeration ........................................................................................ 10 
Condensate drains ................................................................................................................ 10 
Heating Units ......................................................................................................................... 10 
All spray booths .................................................................................................................... 10 
Boilers and pressure vessels ................................................................................................. 10 
Internal combustion engines ................................................................................................ 11 
Pressure piping ...................................................................................................................... 11 
Cooling tower ........................................................................................................................ 11 
Ventilation and ventilation systems ...................................................................................... 11 
Fireplace ................................................................................................................................ 11 
Bath fans ............................................................................................................................... 11 
Vented kitchen hoods ........................................................................................................... 11 
Storage/Piping tanks for flammable liquids .......................................................................... 11 
Chemical hoods and fans ...................................................................................................... 11 
Exhaust fans/power vents ..................................................................................................... 11 
Unfired pressure vessels ....................................................................................................... 11 
Yearly smoke evacuation test ............................................................................................... 11 

PORTABLE STORAGE UNITS FEES .................................................................................. 11 
PLANNING AND ZONING FEES ....................................................................................... 11, 12 
TREE RELATED FEES ...................................................................................................... 12 
 
 



 

5 | P a g e    Revised 12/3/15 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS  
201 Westward Drive 

Miami Springs,  F lorida 33166 
Bui lding Processing Department 

 
SCHEDULE OF CHARGES FOR BUILDING, PLUMBING, ELECTRICAL, MECHANICAL 

AND OTHER RELATED PERMITS AND FEES 
 
BUILDING PERMITS FEES: 
 
1. General maintenance and repairs.  Refer to City Code Section 151.04 (H). 
 
2. Upfront Processing Fee.  When the building permit is received, the applicant shall pay an 

"upfront" processing fee equal ($3.00) for each one hundred (100) square feet, or fractional 
part thereof, or ($3.00) for each ($1,000.00) of estimated valuation, or fractional part thereof.  
 This processing fee is not refundable but shall be credited towards the final building permit 
fee. 

 
3. Structural Processing Fee.  When a building permit application requires review by the 

structural plans processor, a non-refundable fee of ($100) shall be added to the upfront fee on 
residential permits and ($150) for Commercial permits. Subsequent reviews required shall be 
charged at the same rate per review. Special reviews or reviews that require extra time shall be 
charged at as per hour rate for the structural engineer 

• A fee of ($50) shall be charged for window, door, and shutter replacement permits.  
• No fees shall be charged for up to two item submittals of a window, door or shutter 

permits.  
 

4. New Construction or Additions Fee.  The permit fee for general or new construction shall 
be as follows: 
A. New residences, and additions to residential property: 

• Per $1.00 of estimated cost or fractional part….($0.03) (estimated cost shall be 
established by the Building Official using the “R.S. Means Building Construction Cost 
Data” manual) 

• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
 

B. Office buildings, duplexes, hotels, apartments, condominiums, store buildings or any 
other commercial or multiple family zoned properties, tenant improvements, interior 
alterations, parking garages, warehouses with minimum office space, commercial 
swimming pools: 
• Per $1.00 of estimated cost or fractional part…. ($0.04) (estimated cost shall be 

established by the Building Official using the “R.S. Means Building Construction Cost 
Data” manual) 

• Minimum fee:  $125.0 
 

C. Valuation.  The method of determining minimum valuation on which permits are based as 
covered above shall be established by the Building Official in conjunction with the Dade 
County Office of Code Compliance. (Chapter 8, Section 8-12) 

5. General. The permit fee for general construction shall be based on (3%) of the estimated 
cost for Residential and (4%) of the estimated cost for Commercial Projects. The minimum 



 

6 | P a g e    Revised 12/3/15 

permit fees shall be as follow: Modified to clarify that all permits are based on a percentage 
of construction cost. 
A. Concrete patios, driveways, concrete steps, walkways, parking lots, tennis courts and landscaping 

(residential or business): 
1. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
2. ($0.18) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof 

 
B. Wood decks, screen enclosures, and aluminum roofs: 

• Minimum fee: $150.00 
• ($0.75) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof. 

 
C. Awnings, canopies, window, shutters, gates, wrought iron grills, doors and garage doors (residential or 

business): 
1. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
2. ($4.38) per each item or fractional part thereof. 

 
D. Roof and roof repairs, general repairs over $300.00 (residential or business): 

1. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
2. Flat & Shingle ($0.15) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof. Modified fee from $0.13 to $0.15 

per square foot to cover cost of additional required inspections. 
3. Tile & Metal ($0.20) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof. Modified fee from $0.13 to $0.20 per 

square foot to cover cost of additional required inspections. 
 

E. Air conditioning screens, aluminum fences, wood fences (residential or business): 
1. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
2. ($0.81) per LN. FT. or fractional part thereof. 

 
F. Wrought iron fences, and railings (residential or business): 

1. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
2. ($1.06) per LN. FT. or fractional part thereof. 

 
G. Masonry fences and retaining walls: 

• Minimum fee: $150.00 
• ($1.75) per LN. FT. or fractional part thereof. 

 
H. Chain link fences (residential or business): 

1. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
2. ($0.38) per LN. FT. or fractional part thereof. 

  
I. Signs:  

• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
• ($2.50) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof. 
• Contractor Signs:  $25.00  

 
J. Housing and building moving: 

1. Per building or structure:    $125.00 
2. For each 100 sq. ft. or fractional part thereof: ($12.50)  

 
K. Demolition (residential or business): 

1. Minimum fee:  $125.00 
2. ($0.06) per sq. ft. or fractional part thereof. 

 
L. Utility sheds  

• Per building or structure:   $125.00 
 
 



 

7 | P a g e    Revised 12/3/15 

6. Alterations and Repairs Fee: 
A. (Single family residential zones): 

• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
• Per $1000.00 of value or fractional part thereof: ($30.00) 

B. (Commercial or multiple family zones): 
• Minimum fee:  $125.00 
• Per $1000.00 of value or fractional part thereof: ($40.00) 

 
7. Minimum Permit Fee: 

A Minimum Permit shall be allowed in cases where the value of the job is below $500 and the 
Permit requires only one review and one inspection.  Such Permit shall have a fee of fifty 
dollars ($50.00).  Minimum Permits must have the prior approval of the Building Official, 
Director of Building and Code Compliance, or his/her designee. 

 
10. Miscellaneous Fees. The City shall charge and collect the following fees for re-inspection, 

double permits, lost plans, revised plans, and second re-inspection fees, to wit: 
A. Re-inspection fees.  Refer to Code Section 151.06(B)(1). 
B. Double fees. When work for which a permit is required is commenced prior to the 

obtaining of a permit, the permit applicant shall be required to pay ($100.00) plus a double 
permit fee. The payment of the required fee shall not relieve them from being subject to 
any of the penalties therein. The double fee requirements shall be applicable to all 
divisions of the Building Department as noted herein. 

C. Lost plan fee.  When plans for new buildings and additions are lost by the owner or the 
contractor, a recertification   will be required to review, stamp, and approve a new set of 
plans as a field copy. The fee shall be (30%) of the original building permit fee up to a 
maximum of ($500.00). The lost plan fee shall never be lower than ($100.00). 

D. Revisions to existing plans.  A fee for reviewing plans (after approval of initial plans) shall 
be ($50.00) per sheet and/or per trade, with a minimum fee of ($25.00). 

E. Extension of permit prior to expiration.  A fee of ($50.00) shall be paid by the permit 
holder who submits a written request for a permit extension to the Building Official. 

F. Renewal of expired permit. A minimum fee of ($125.00) shall be applied for those permits 
that only require a final inspection. When a permit has become null and void pursuant to 
the Florida Building Code, a credit of fifty percent (50%) of the permit fee shall be applied 
to any re-application (Renewal) fee for a permit covering the same project and involving 
the same plans, provided that the complete re-application is made within six (6) months of 
the expiration date of the original permit, and provided that no refund had been made as 
provided in this Section. 

G. Shop drawing review.  A fee of ($17.50) per sheet shall be charged for reviewing shop 
drawings. 

H. Certificate of occupancy and certificate of completion.  ($125.00) each. 
I. Temporary certificate of occupancy and temporary certificate of completion.  ($65.00) 

each. Failure to renew temporary certificate of occupancy or temporary certificate of 
completion ($125.00). 

J. Permit card replacement shall carry a fee of ($30.00). 
K. Change of contractor.  The fee for a change of contractor shall be (25%) percent of the 

original base permit fee when the job is up to fifty percent complete as determined by the 
City Building Official.  The fee for a change of contractor shall be (20%) percent of the 
original base permit fee when the job is between fifty one and seventy five percent 



 

8 | P a g e    Revised 12/3/15 

complete as determined by the City Building Official.  The fee for a change of contractor 
shall be (10%) percent of the original base permit fee when the job is between seventy six 
and one hundred percent complete as determined by the City Building Official.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing fee, other miscellaneous fees set forth in this Schedule of 
Charges may also be applicable in the sole and exclusive discretion of the City Building 
Official. 

L. Forty year certification fee.  For every application for forty year certification under section 
104.9, Florida Building Code, there shall be paid to the City, for the processing of each 
application, a fee of ($250.00). For every application for subsequent recertification at ten 
year intervals thereafter, there shall be paid to the City, for the processing of each 
application, a fee of ($125.00). 

M. Courtesy inspection fee.  When a homeowner requests that a courtesy inspection be 
performed by a code enforcement officer in order to establish if any City Code violations 
exist, and a written report is prepared, a fee of one hundred twenty five dollars ($125.00) 
shall be paid to the City. A fee of ($50.00) shall be assessed for a verification inspection 
required to close-out and/or cancel an expired permit. 

N. Ch
ange of use and occupational license inspection.  Whenever a new occupational license or 
new occupancy is applied for, a fee of ($125.00) shall be paid to the City for inspection of 
the premises prior to the issuance of said license. This fee is non refundable and does not 
apply towards the licensing fee. 

O. A fee of ($25.00) shall be charged for the preparation and submission of any letters 
requested by any citizen or third party regarding any building information on any property 
in the city.  

P. A 
fee of fifty cents (.50) per $1,000 job cost, or fractional value of work to be done as has 
been mandated by Dade County Code Compliance Office under County ordinance 91-74.  
This code compliance fee shall be in addition to any other fees and costs that may be 
payable as a condition of obtaining a permit, and shall be non-refundable. 

Q. A 
fee of one cent (.01) per square foot shall be paid to the City for the purpose of Radon 
Surcharge as mandated by the State of Florida Department of Business Regulation and the 
Department of Health and Rehabilitation Services under Florida Administrative Code 
Section 468.631 and Section 10D-91.1314, respectively, in addition to any other fees and 
costs that may be payable as a condition of obtaining a permit, and shall be non-
refundable. 

R. Construction completion bond in the amount of $250.00 shall be assessed on every permit 
which is valued in excess of $2500.00.  This bond will be refunded upon the approval of the 
final inspection or upon the issuance of a certificate of completion or certificate of 
occupancy. 

S. Special Project Fees.  The Building Official or designee has the authority to invoice for 
reimbursement of actual costs on projects requiring services not provided for in the 
current fee schedule.  The invoice will be based on estimated time needed for the project 
times the current hourly rate of the Building Official or his designee. 

T. Conditional Re-Occupancy Agreement-$500 
U. Conditional Code Compliance Agreement-$500 
V. Unsafe Structures Board Filing $500 plus costs (as billed by the Unsafe Structures Board) 
W. Technology Fee: 



 

9 | P a g e    Revised 12/3/15 

A technology fee of 10% of the total Building permit fee shall be assessed to each permit to  
enhance the city’s ability to provide state-of-the-art technology to its Building Department 
customers. 

X. Scanning Fee. A fee charged per page for cost recovery of digitizing permit drawings for 
electronic plan review: 
• Small sheets “11x17 or smaller” shall be charged at ($1.00 per page)  
• Large sheets “18x24 or larger” shall be charged at ($3.00 per page) 

Y. After Hours Inspection Fee. Inspections scheduled before/after working hours, weekends 
and/or holidays shall be paid in advanced.  
• Residential: ($150.00 per inspection)  
• Commercial: ($250.00 per inspection) 
 

11. Refunds.  The refunding of any permit fees shall be as follows: 
A. There shall be no permit fees refunded for completed permitted work. 
B. The Building Director may recommend the refund of 80% of all refundable permit fees so 

long as no work has commenced within 90 days of permitting and no permits have been 
void.  However, the fee collected for the examination of plans and specifications shall not be 
refundable. 

C. If at any time a permit is canceled for any reason, at such time as a new permit is 
requested a complete processing of plans and permit fee shall be required to include 
reviews by all required trades and applicable boards. 

 
ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES: 
 
1. Minimum fee ................................................................................................................ $125.00 

Temporary service for testing purposes, construction .............................................. $62.50       
(Plus fees listed below for 101 amps & over)              
Service repair and/or meter change (adding 3rd phase) ........................................... $50.00          
Temporary for testing, for a period of 30 days .......................................................... $50.00 
Renewal, for additional 30 days ................................................................................. $50.00 
Signs (each) ................................................................................................................. $50.00 

2. Services.  In addition to the foregoing the following fees shall be charged for each service and 
each feeder (feed rail): 

100 amps and under ................................................................................................... $37.50 
101 amps thru 200 amps ............................................................................................ $43.75 
201 amps thru 400 amps ............................................................................................ $50.00 
401 amps thru 600 amps ............................................................................................ $62.50 
601 amps thru 800 amps ............................................................................................ $68.75 
For each 100 amps over 800 amps ............................................................................. $6.25 

3. Switchboards.  Fees are the same as the fees under “services” computed on amps, as set forth 
in (2.) above. 
4. Rough wiring outlets. (light, receptacle, switch, sign and also telephone and other low voltage 
outlets): 

1-10 outlets ................................................................................................................. $25.00 
Each additional outlet ................................................................................................. $2.50 

5.  Low voltage systems.  Items listed below but, not limited to: 
Fire alarm or intercom systems, each device ............................................................. $37.50 
(Security alarms do not require a permit)   



 

10 | P a g e    Revised 12/3/15 

Fire alarm and/or fire pump test, per hour ................................................................ $62.50 
6. .........................................................................................................................Equipment 

outlets or permanent connections: 
Air conditioners, window and through wall units ...................................................... $12.50 
Compactor .................................................................................................................. $12.50 
Deep freezer ............................................................................................................... $12.50 
Dishwasher .................................................................................................................. $12.50 
Dryer ........................................................................................................................... $12.50 
Fan ............................................................................................................................... $12.50 
Garbage disposal ......................................................................................................... $12.50 
Heat recovery .............................................................................................................. $12.50 
Oven ............................................................................................................................ $12.50 
Range/range top ......................................................................................................... $12.50 
Refrigerator (domestic) .............................................................................................. $12.50 
Refrigerator (commercial per HP, see motor schedule) ............................................ $12.50 
Space heater ............................................................................................................... $12.50 
Time clock ................................................................................................................... $12.50 
Washing machine ........................................................................................................ $12.50 
Water heater-boiler (electrical) .................................................................................. $12.50 

7. .........................................................................................................................Air 
conditioners, central, per ton .................................................................................... $8.75 

8. .........................................................................................................................Clear 
violations inspection, new tenants ........................................................................... $62.50 

9. .........................................................................................................................Motors: 
Up to 5 HP ................................................................................................................... $12.50 
5 HP - 10 HP ................................................................................................................ $37.50 
Over 10 HP (additional per HP)................................................................................... $2.50 

10. ........................................................................................................................Generators, 
transformers, commercial heating equipment and strip heaters: 
Up to 5 KW .................................................................................................................. $12.50 
Up to 10 KW ................................................................................................................ $20.00 
10 KW - 25 KW, each................................................................................................... $37.50 
Over 25 KW, each ....................................................................................................... $62.50 
Transformers for X-rays .............................................................................................. $22.50 

11. ........................................................................................................................Welding 
machine outlets: 
Up to 50 amps ............................................................................................................. $25.00 
Each additional 50 amps or fraction thereof ............................................................. $12.50 

12. ........................................................................................................................Speci
al purpose outlets, commercial: Popcorn, doughnut, drink machines; coin-music 
machines; toasters; coffee urns; espresso machines; deep fryers; telephone booths; 
refrigerator display cases; etc., $25.00 each. 

13. ........................................................................................................................Temporary 
work on circuses, carnivals, outdoor events... 
Minimum Fee .............................................................................................................. $187.50 

14. ........................................................................................................................Fixtures: 
Lights: 

1 - 10 sockets ........................................................................................................ $12.50 



 

11 | P a g e    Revised 12/3/15 

1 - 10 fluorescent tubes ........................................................................................ $12.50 
Each additional ........................................................................................................... $1.25 
Lighting fixture "heads", each .................................................................................... $8.75 
Flood lights or light standards, each........................................................................... $12.50 
Parking lot lights, mercury vapor or quartz,  charge per light ................................... $12.50 

15. ........................................................................................................................Plug mold 
and strip lighting: 
First 10 feet or fractional part thereof ....................................................................... $31.25 
Each 5 feet or fractional part thereafter .................................................................... $3.75

16. ........................................................................................................................Minimum 
permit fee including repair work not elsewhere classified ...................................... $125.00 

17. ........................................................................................................................Satellite 
Antenna grounding .................................................................................................... $62.50 

18. .......................................................................................................................Demolitions; 
removal of electrical circuits, per floor ..................................................................... $43.75 

19. ........................................................................................................................Swimming 
pools, spas and hot tubs: 
A. ....................................................................................................................Residential

............................................................................................................................... $125.00 
B. ....................................................................................................................Commercial

............................................................................................................................... $125.00 
C. ....................................................................................................................Residential 

pool & spa combination ........................................................................................ $125.00 
 

PLUMBING PERMIT FEES: 
 
1. .........................................................................................................................Residential/c

ommercial (new construction, additions, alterations).  
Minimum fee. ............................................................................................................. $125.00 
A. ....................................................................................................................R

ough and set at eight dollars and seventy five cents ($8.75) rough-in, eight 
dollars and seventy five cents ($8.75) set on each fixture listed below if part 
of the same permit application.  Including, but not limited to, bath tub, 
bidet, dishwasher, disposal, drinking fountain, floor drain, lavatory, laundry 
tray, clothes washer, shower, sink, urinal, water closet indirect wastes, 
icemaker, and water heater. 

B. ....................................................................................................................I
tems not covered under minimum fee schedule shall be priced at a 
minimum per-unit or fixture rate of seventeen dollars and fifty cents 
($17.50) eight dollars and seventy five cents ($8.75) rough-in, eight dollars 
and seventy five cents ($8.75) set. 

2. .........................................................................................................................W
ater treatment plants, sewage treatment plants and lift stations. 
A. ....................................................................................................................First 

$1,000.00 value or fractional part thereof ........................................................... $93.75 
B. ....................................................................................................................Each 

additional $1,000.00 value or fractional part thereof ......................................... $31.25 
3. .........................................................................................................................Natur



 
 

10 | P a g e   Revised 12/3/15 

al gas and liquefied petroleum rough and set at eight dollars and seventy five cents 
($8.75) rough-in, eight dollars and seventy five cents ($8.75) set on each fixture if parts 
of the same permit application.  (See minimum fee above.) 

4. .........................................................................................................................Grease trap
..................................................................................................................................... $43.75 

5. .........................................................................................................................Interceptor
..................................................................................................................................... $43.75 

6. .........................................................................................................................Wells
..................................................................................................................................... $43.75 

7. .........................................................................................................................Sewer 
connection .................................................................................................................. $43.75 

8. .........................................................................................................................Water 
service ......................................................................................................................... $43.75 

9. .........................................................................................................................Sewer 
capping ........................................................................................................................ $43.75 

10. .......................................................................................................................Septic tank
..................................................................................................................................... $62.50 

11. .......................................................................................................................Soakage pit
..................................................................................................................................... $43.75 

12. .......................................................................................................................Catch basin
..................................................................................................................................... $31.25 

13. .......................................................................................................................Interceptor-
grease-oil ..................................................................................................................... $43.75 

14. .......................................................................................................................Solar water 
heaters, installation or repair ..................................................................................... $43.75 

15. .......................................................................................................................Heat 
recovery systems ........................................................................................................ $43.75 

16. .......................................................................................................................Pool piping
..................................................................................................................................... $43.75 

17. .......................................................................................................................Drain field
..................................................................................................................................... $43.75 

18. .......................................................................................................................Pump and 
abandon septic tank ................................................................................................... $43.75 

19. .......................................................................................................................Roof drains & 
area drains .................................................................................................................. $43.75 

20. .......................................................................................................................Lawn 
Sprinkler System ......................................................................................................... $43.75 

21. .......................................................................................................................Back-flow 
prevention device: 
A. ....................................................................................................................Up to 2" 

(inches) .................................................................................................................. $43.75 
B. ....................................................................................................................Over 2" 

(inches) .................................................................................................................. $62.50 
22. .......................................................................................................................Fire 

Sprinklers: 
A. ....................................................................................................................Each Siamese

............................................................................................................................... $31.25 
B. ....................................................................................................................Each Post 



 
 

11 | P a g e   Revised 12/3/15 

Indicator Valve ...................................................................................................... $31.25 
C. ....................................................................................................................Each Roof 

Manifold ................................................................................................................ $31.25 
D. ....................................................................................................................Each Fire 

Pump ..................................................................................................................... $43.75 
E. ....................................................................................................................Each 

Sprinkler Head ....................................................................................................... $0.94 
F. ....................................................................................................................Connection 

to municipal water supply .................................................................................... $31.25 
 
MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES: 
 
The building department shall charge and collect for mechanical permits at the following rate: 
1. .........................................................................................................................Air 

conditioning and refrigeration: 
• .....................................................................................................................Minimum fee

............................................................................................................................... $125.00 
• .....................................................................................................................Per ton or 

fractional part of ton ............................................................................................ $15.00 
2. .........................................................................................................................Condensate 

drains: 
• .....................................................................................................................First

............................................................................................................................... $15.00 
• .....................................................................................................................Each 

additional .............................................................................................................. $6.25 
3. .........................................................................................................................Heating 

units: 
A. ....................................................................................................................First 5 units, 

each unit ............................................................................................................... $31.25 
B. ....................................................................................................................Each unit 

thereafter .............................................................................................................. $18.75 
C. ....................................................................................................................Each and 

every unit capable of heating; furnaces and heating equipment, including commercial 
dryers, ovens, and other fired objects not elsewhere classified. Includes all component 
parts of the system except fuel and electric lines. 
• ................................................................................................................For the first 

200,000 BTU or fractional part ....................................................................... $43.75 
• ................................................................................................................For each 

additional 100,000 BTU or fractional part ...................................................... $25.00 
• ................................................................................................................Ductwork: 

o.....................................................................................................first 
$1,000.00 value .................................................................................. $43.75 

o.....................................................................................................each 
additional $1,000.00 value or  fractional part thereof ...................... $15.00 

4. .........................................................................................................................All spray 
booths: 
A. ....................................................................................................................For the first 

300 sq. feet or fractional part thereof ................................................................. $250.00 



 
 

12 | P a g e   Revised 12/3/15 

B. ....................................................................................................................Each 
additional 100 sq. feet or fractional part thereof ................................................ $125.00 

5. .........................................................................................................................Boilers and 
pressure vessels: 
A. ....................................................................................................................Rated 

capacity first 200,000 BTU .................................................................................... $125.00 
B. ....................................................................................................................Each 

additional 100,000 BTU's ...................................................................................... $25.00 
(Tons = BTU’s divided by 12,000) 

C. ....................................................................................................................Steam 
boilers, each .......................................................................................................... $125.00 

D. ....................................................................................................................Hot water 
boilers (same), each .............................................................................................. $125.00 

E. ....................................................................................................................Miniature 
boilers (same), each .............................................................................................. $62.50 

F. ....................................................................................................................Steam driven 
prime movers, each .............................................................................................. $62.50 

G. ....................................................................................................................Steam 
actuated machinery, each .................................................................................... $18.75 

H. ....................................................................................................................Unfired 
pressure vessels; operating at pressures in excess of 60 psi and having a volume of more 
than 5 cu. ft. .......................................................................................................... $50.00 
a. ...............................................................................................................Fee for 

periodic inspections of steam boiler (semi-annual, internal and external): 
• ..........................................................................................................Semiannual 

internal inspection .................................................................................... $37.50 
• ..........................................................................................................Semiannual 

external inspection ................................................................................... $62.50 
• ..........................................................................................................Hot water 

boilers, annual .......................................................................................... $62.50 
• ..........................................................................................................Unfired 

pressure vessel, annual ............................................................................. $62.50 
• ..........................................................................................................Miniature 

boilers, semiannual, each inspection ....................................................... $43.75 
I. .....................................................................................................................Certificate of 

inspection, (conducted by an independent agency) ............................................ $62.50 
J. .....................................................................................................................Processing 

by mechanical inspector ....................................................................................... $130.0 
6. .........................................................................................................................Internal 

combustion engines: 
• ................................................................................................................Up to 50 KVA

......................................................................................................................... $125.00 
• ................................................................................................................Each 

additional 5 KVA or fractional part thereof .................................................... $25.00 
7. .........................................................................................................................Pressure 

piping: 
• ................................................................................................................First 

$1,000.00 ........................................................................................................ $62.50 



 
 

13 | P a g e   Revised 12/3/15 

• ................................................................................................................Each 
additional $1,000 or fractional part thereof .................................................. $31.25 

8. .........................................................................................................................Cooling 
tower: 

• ................................................................................................................Up to 10 
tons ................................................................................................................. $62.50 

• ................................................................................................................Each 
additional 10 tons or fractional part thereof ................................................. $18.75 

9. .........................................................................................................................Ventilation 
and ventilation systems: 

• ................................................................................................................Up to 
$1,000.00 in value ........................................................................................... $43.75 

• ................................................................................................................Each 
additional 10 tons or fractional part thereof ................................................. $18.75 

10. .......................................................................................................................Fireplace 
(each) .......................................................................................................................... $62.50 

11. .......................................................................................................................Bath fans, 
vented: 

• ................................................................................................................First
......................................................................................................................... $18.75 

• ................................................................................................................Each 
additional ........................................................................................................ $12.50 

12. .......................................................................................................................Vented 
kitchen hoods, residential ......................................................................................... $31.25 

13. .......................................................................................................................Storage 
tanks for flammable liquids (gas), per tank .............................................................. $50.00 

14. .......................................................................................................................Piping for 
flammable liquids: 

• ................................................................................................................First 
$1,000.00 in value .......................................................................................... $62.50 

• ................................................................................................................Each 
additional $1,000.00 or fractional part thereof ............................................. $31.25 

15. .......................................................................................................................Chemical fire 
suppression system (each) ......................................................................................... $62.50 

16. .......................................................................................................................Commercial 
hoods and fans (each) ................................................................................................ $93.75 

17. .......................................................................................................................Exhaust 
fans/power vents (each) ............................................................................................ $43.75 

18. .......................................................................................................................Unfired 
pressure vessels (each) .............................................................................................. $43.75 

19. .......................................................................................................................Yearly smoke 
evacuation test ........................................................................................................... $250.00 

 
PORTABLE STORAGE UNITS FEE: 
 
1. .........................................................................................................................Portable 

Storage Units (PSU) .................................................................................................... $50.00 
2. .........................................................................................................................PSU Renewal



 
 

14 | P a g e   Revised 12/3/15 

..................................................................................................................................... $25.00 
3. .........................................................................................................................Permit fee 

for PSU shall be waived by the Building Official when a current Building Permit has been 
obtained on for the same property address. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING FEES: 

 
1. .........................................................................................................................Zoning and 

Planning Board Application Fees (Sec. 150-103) 
A. ....................................................................................................................Residential

............................................................................................................................... $2,000.00 
B. ....................................................................................................................Commercial

............................................................................................................................... $2,500.00 
*Plus costs of recovery 
2. .................................................................................................................. Petition for 

Zoning Change (Sec. 150-104) 
A. ....................................................................................................................Residential

............................................................................................................................... $3,000.00 
B. ....................................................................................................................Commercial

............................................................................................................................... $6,000.00 
*Plus actual accosts of mailing and publication 
3. .................................................................................................................. Applications for 

Variances (Sec. 150-112) 
A. ....................................................................................................................Minimum 

Fee (Residential) ................................................................................................... $350.00 
B. ....................................................................................................................Minimum 

Fee (Commercial) .................................................................................................. $350.00 
C. ....................................................................................................................Building 

Projects under $10,000......................................................................................... $350.00 
D. ....................................................................................................................Building 

Projects over $10,000 in value (Residential) ........................................................ $350.00 
E. ....................................................................................................................Building 

Projects over $10,000 in value (Commercial)....................................................... $1,000.00 
F. ....................................................................................................................Commercial 

Vehicle Variance ................................................................................................... $50.00 
4. .................................................................................................................. Appeals from 

Denials of Variance Applications (Sec. 150-111) 
A. ....................................................................................................................Residential

............................................................................................................................... $100.00 
B. ....................................................................................................................Commercial

............................................................................................................................... $600.00 
5. .........................................................................................................................Zoning-

Permit Review Fee 
A. ....................................................................................................................Residential

............................................................................................................................... $100.00 
B. ....................................................................................................................Commercial

............................................................................................................................... $200.00 
*Plus 50% of fee for rework after second disapproval 



 
 

15 | P a g e   Revised 12/3/15 

 
Note-These fees shall only be applied at the discretion of the Planning and Zoning Director, 
depending on the time spent to review the permit/plans. 

 
6. ........................................................................................................................ Zoning Code 

Amendments 
A. ................................................................................................................... Residential

............................................................................................................................... $4,250.00 
B. ................................................................................................................... Commercial

............................................................................................................................... $4,250.00 
7. .........................................................................................................................Comp Plan 

Amendments............................................................................................................... $5,000.00 
*Plus cost recovery including consultants 
8. ........................................................................................................................ Modification 

or Release of Covenant ............................................................................................... $500.00 
9. ........................................................................................................................ Street or 

Alley Vacation Application .......................................................................................... $4,000.00 
10. ...................................................................................................................... Zoning 

Verification (Liquor License) 
A. ................................................................................................................... 2APS

............................................................................................................................... $160.00* 
B. ................................................................................................................... 2COP

............................................................................................................................... $200.00* 
C. ................................................................................................................... 4COP

............................................................................................................................... $450.00* 
*Plus $250.00 for preparation of covenant if applicable (Optional) 
11. ...................................................................................................................... Zoning 

Verification-Other 
A. ................................................................................................................... Residential

............................................................................................................................... $150.00 
B. ................................................................................................................... Commercial

............................................................................................................................... $200.00 
12. ...................................................................................................................... FIRM Rate 

Map Determination 
A. ................................................................................................................... Current

............................................................................................................................... $50.00 
B. ................................................................................................................... Historic

............................................................................................................................... $75.00 
13. ...................................................................................................................... Tentative 

Plat .............................................................................................................................. $500.00 
14. ...................................................................................................................... Final Plat

..................................................................................................................................... $1,000.00 
* Plus Cost Recovery Fees 
15. ...................................................................................................................... Street/Alley 

Vacation and Abandonment ....................................................................................... $500.00 
16. ...................................................................................................................... Re-

Notification Fee for Board of Adjustment and/or Zoning .......................................... $150.00 
 And Planning Board Hearings (If deferral is requested by Applicant)  



 
 

16 | P a g e   Revised 12/3/15 

 
TREE RELATED FEES: 
 
1. .........................................................................................................................TREE 

REMOVAL APPLICATION ..................................................................................... $35.00
 
 

 



           
Meeting Date: 1/25/2016  
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor Zavier Garcia and Members of the City Council 
 
Via:   Ron Gorland, City Manager 
    
From:   Chris Heid, Planner 
    
Subject: Application for Site Plan approval for the construction of a hotel.  
   Case # 1-Zp-16, Applicant: Miami Airport Lodging, Llc  
   Address: 3449 Nw 42 Avenue 
 
 
REQUEST:  Applicant is requesting site plan approval for the construction of a 73,484 square foot, 127 
room hotel.  
 
THE PROPERTY:  The property is roughly triangular shaped, although truncated on the east end.  The 
parcel has approximately 274 of frontage on the Le Jeune Road frontage road, and contains 80,240 
square feet, or 1.84 acres.  
 
THE PROJECT:  The applicant is proposing the construction of a five story hotel with 127 rooms, and 
a total building size of 73,484 square feet.  (FAR of 0.915). 
 
The site contains 93 surface parking spaces, in excess of that required, as well as a swimming pool, CBS 
trash enclosure and a entry porte cochere. 
 
The ground floor of the building contains the lobby, front desk, a breakfast area, meeting and fitness 
rooms, and seven guest rooms. Floors two through five have  
typical floor plans with thirty rooms on each floor. 
 
The building is of CBS construction, with  a simple, but pleasing architectural style with scored stucco 
bands, fixed aluminum windows and a decorative stone veneer on the first floor, rising to the second or 
third floor in some locations for additional visual interest. The stone veneer also wraps the columns of 
the welcoming porte cochere.  A decorative stucco parapet at the roofline further enhances the design, 
and is of sufficient height to screen all rooftop equipment.  
 
ANALYSIS:  The proposed hotel would replace an existing thirty year old, one story restaurant of 6,854 
square feet, clearly not the highest and best use of the property.  In its place would be a five story, 
73,484 square foot hotel, more fully realizing the parcels potential, adding a new hotel to the City’s 
inventory, while enhancing the Abraham Tract neighborhood specifically, and the City generally. 
 



 
 
 
In addition, the hotel would provide numerous short term construction jobs, long term hotel jobs, and 
benefit other hotel service providers. 
 
HISTORY: This project was approved by the Zoning and Planning Board at the meeting of January 4, 
2016 by a vote of 4-0. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the request for site plan approval be granted, subject 
to the following condition. 
 
 

1. Plans shall substantially comply with those submitted, as follows: 
 

• Survey, by Pulice Land Surveyors, Inc. dated March 3, 2015 
• Sheet SP-1, Architectural Site Plan, by Phillips Architects, dated, signed and sealed 

November 5, 2015. 
• Sheet SP-2, Pool, Enlarged Plan & Details, by Phillips Architects, dated, signed and sealed 

November 5, 2015. 
• Sheet A-1.1, Floor Plan Level 1, by Phillips Architects, dated, signed and sealed November 

5, 2015. 
• Sheet A-1.2, Floor Plan Level 2, by Phillips Architects, dated, signed and sealed November 

5, 2015. 
• Sheet A-1.3, Floor Plan Level 3-5, by Phillips Architects, dated, signed and sealed November 

5, 2015. 
• Sheet A-2.1, Roof Plan, by Phillips Architects, dated, signed and sealed November 5, 2015. 
• Sheet A-4.1, Exterior Elevations, by Phillips Architects, dated, signed and sealed November 

5, 2015. 
• Sheet A-4.2, Exterior Elevations, by Phillips Architects, dated, signed and sealed November 

5, 2015. 
• Sheet A-5.1, Building Sections, by Phillips Architects, dated, signed and sealed November 5, 

2015. 
• Sheet A-5.2, Building Sections, by Phillips Architects, dated, signed and sealed November 5, 

2015. 
• Sheet LP-1, Landscape Plan, by Phillips Architects, dated October 16, 2015, revised on 

November 5, 2015, and signed and sealed N.D. 
• Sheet C-3, Paving-Grading-Drainage Plan and Notes, by Consulting Engineering & Science, 

INC., dated June 22, 2015, signed and sealed November 4, 2015. 
• Sheet C-7, Water & Sewer Plan, by Consulting Engineering & Science, INC., dated July 31, 

2015, signed and sealed November 4, 2015. 
 

Substantial compliance shall be at the sole determination of the City. 
 
2. All curbing shall be Miami-Dade County Type “D”.  

 
3. Any freestanding sign must be a monument type only, with a CBS base incorporating the accent 

stone used in the hotel building. 
 



4. All wall signage shall be of flush mounted channel letters only. 
 

5. Parapet shall be of sufficient height to screen all rooftop equipment, excluding stair and elevator 
towers. 
 

6. Landscape plan shall be extended to include the frontage road swale area. 
 

7. The design and construction of the proposed retaining wall shall be reviewed and approved by 
staff prior to the issuance of a building permit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12/5/16 
 

ZPBCC3449NW42Avenue 
 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, January 4, 2016 

 

City of Miami Springs, Florida 
 
The regular meeting of the Miami Springs Zoning and Planning Board was held 
on Monday, January 4, 2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall following the 
Board of Adjustment meeting. 
 
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:42 p.m. 
 
Present were:  Bill Tallman 

 Bob Calvert 
 Juan Molina  

Alejandro Gonzalez 
      

Absent:   Chairman Manuel Pérez-Vichot  
 Vice Chair Ernie Aloma 

 
Also Present:   City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
    Planning and Zoning Director Chris Heid  
                                Board Secretary Juan D. Garcia 
 
In the absence of Chairman Perez-Vichot and Vice Chair Aloma, Board member 
Tallman, the longest serving board member that was present, served as 
Chairman. 
 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING:  

 
Minutes of the August 4, 2015 meeting were approved as written. 
 
Board member Molina moved to approve the minutes as written.  Board 
member Calvert seconded the motion, which passed unanimously on voice 
vote. 
 
 
3. SWEARING IN OFF ALL WITNESS AND ZONING AND PLANNING 

DIRECTOR 
 
Board Secretary Garcia swore in the Zoning and Planning Director, the 
applicants or representatives of the applicants who would testify should the 
Board have any questions. 
 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, January 4, 2016 

 
 
 
 
4. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A) CASE # 01-ZP-16 
CHRIS DESAI, MIAMI AIRPORT LODGING, LLC 
3449 N.W. 42 AVENUE 
ZONING: ABRAHAM TRACT DISTRICT 
LOT SIZE: 80,242 SQ. FT.  
 

Applicant is requesting site plan approval for the construction of a 73,484 square 
foot, 127 room hotel. 

                          
Zoning and Planning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board. 
 
Board member Tallman asked Zoning and Planning Director Heid if there was 
any correspondence on this or if there could be any correspondence and Zoning 
and Planning Director Heid responded that there could be correspondence but 
there was not any. 
 
Board member Tallman asked Mr. Chris Desai to approach the podium to 
comment on the project. 
 
Chris Desai of 3785 NW 82 Avenue presented the Board with a rendering of the 
site plan and a project overview. Mr. Desai stated that Hilton has very strict 
standards and guidelines for their hotels and this hotel would follow them. 
 
Board member Molina asked Mr. Desai what the proposed open date would be 
for the hotel and Mr. Desai responded by saying that they hope to break ground 
in February. Typically, projects like these take between eleven to fourteen 
months to complete. This would mean the hotel would be opening early next 
year. 
 
Board member Tallman asked if there was any further discussion or any 
questions from the audience and there were neither. 
 
Board member Molina moved to approve the site plan as long as it met the 
seven conditions requested in the Staff Report by the Zoning and Planning 
Director. Alternate Board Member Gonzalez seconded the motion, which 
passed 4-0 on roll call vote. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the following steps that need to be taken for the 
site plan to be approved by City Council and if the applicant will need to present 
any further plans to the Zoning and Planning Board. 
 
 
5. ADJOURN 
 
There was no further business to discuss and meeting was duly adjourned at 
6:54 p.m. 
 
 



 

Zoning and Planning Board  Monday, January 4, 2016 

Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
                                                           
Juan D. Garcia                                                                        
Board Secretary                                                                          
 
 
Adopted by the Board on                                                         
this       day of             , 2016.                                                  
 
 
                                                      
Manny Perez-Vichot, Chair 
 
 
Words -stricken through- have been deleted.  Underscored words represent 
changes. All other words remain unchanged. 
 
*************************************************************************************************************** 

 “The comments, discussions, recommendations and proposed actions of City Citizen 
Advisory Boards do not constitute the policy, position, or prospective action of the City, 
which may only be established and authorized by an appropriate vote or other action of 
the City Council”. 
*************************************************************************************************************** 

 







































































City of Miami Springs 
Office of the City Attorney 

Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 

 

201 Westward Drive - Miami Springs, Florida 33166 
Tel: (305) 805-5006  Fax: (305) 805-5028 

www.miamisprings-fl.gov 
 

          

MEMO  
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney  
 
DATE: January 25, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Clarification of Election Qualifying Process 

 
 
 As you are all already aware, the last City General Election was brought into 
question by an “Ethics Complaint” and a “Litigation” challenging the results of the 
election of Mayor Garcia. 
 
 Despite the “Ethics Complaint” being closed without a “Cause Finding,” and 
the “Litigation” being closed by the court, a singular issue remains in question due to 
an absence of direction in the City Charter Section 3.04 (see attached) on 
nominations for elections, and Florida Statute Section 99.095 (see attached) that 
appears to dictate the proper process for resolving the remaining open issue. 
 
 While the City has consistently maintained that the “Qualifying Provision” set 
forth in Florida Statute Section 99.095(2)(a) is not applicable to City of Miami 
Springs Elections, its inapplicability does not, however, answer the question as to 
when a candidate for office in a City General Election may begin securing the 
required petition signatures for election qualification.  In fact, the City Charter 
provision in question is “silent” as to when a candidate may begin collecting petition 
signatures. 
 
 Despite the foregoing, Charter Section 3.04 does provide certain information 
and direction by stating, “…a petition for this purpose (election qualification) shall be 
signed by not less than 50 qualified electors and filed with the City Clerk, 
accompanied by a filing fee of $25, within the qualifying period.” Based upon this 
provision, it is clear that a campaign account must be opened before any petitions 
are filed with the Clerk due to the filing fee requirement. 
 
 In any event, it would seem prudent, based upon the action taken in 
contesting the last City General Election, for the City Council to resolve the 
outstanding question regarding the appropriate time for election candidates to begin 
securing petition signatures. 

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/


City of Miami Springs 
Office of the City Attorney 

Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 

 

201 Westward Drive - Miami Springs, Florida 33166 
Tel: (305) 805-5006  Fax: (305) 805-5028 

www.miamisprings-fl.gov 
 

  
 
 By way of appropriate remedial action, the following methods are offered for 
your consideration, to wit; 
 
 #1 Revision of all the charter provision on Elections.  The theory being that 
since any charter revision requires a City Election, it might be a good time to review 
and revise the existing provisions and procedures.  
 
 #2  Adopt an ordinance that sets forth that Election petition signatures cannot 
be secured until after a campaign election account is opened.  This method for 
solving the existing question does require a City-wide election and provides a 
provision and process that is consistent with the State Law provision contained in 
Florida Statute 99.095(2)(a). 
 
 #3  Direct the City Clerk to prepare an “outline” of all election procedures that 
she will be enforcing as the City’s Supervisor of Election and then either have it 
adopted by Council vote or Administrative Order.  This would provide a solution to 
the existing question, but would not have the force, authority, or weight of a Charter 
Election or Ordinance enactment solution. 
 
 #4  Take no action at all and rely upon the prior practices of the City to fight 
any future challenges to the City’s Election processes.  This, however, would be like 
simply ignoring the problem and would, most likely, give future unsuccessful 
candidates a basis to attack the results of a City General Election. 
 
 I will also attach the previously referenced investigative report of the Miami-
Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust to refresh your memory and for your 
further review.  
 
 By a copy of this memo, I am also requesting that the City Manager and City 
Clerk include a discussion of this memo and its proposed solutions on an upcoming 
agenda.   

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
























City of Miami Springs 
Office of the City Attorney 

Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 

 

201 Westward Drive - Miami Springs, Florida 33166 
Tel: (305) 805-5006  Fax: (305) 805-5028 

www.miamisprings-fl.gov 
 

          

MEMO  
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney  
 
DATE: January 25, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Amendment to Code Section 34-17: Employee Disciplinary 

Action 
 

 
 As a result of certain issues being raised for discussion by the City’s 
administrative staff, it has been determined that the City Code does not currently 
contain a provision that would “effectively” prohibit “on duty” employees from 
carrying dangerous weapons. 
 
 Therefore, proposed for consideration is the following City Code Ordinance 
amendment which prohibits such conduct and provides an Employee Disciplinary 
Penalty for carrying weapons while “on duty” with the City. 
  
Section 34-17. Employee Disciplinary Action 
 
(A)…… 
(B)…… 
(C)…… 
(D)…… 
(E)  Types of Offenses.  The three groups of offenses and guides for standard 
recommended penalties are as follows: 
 
Group I Offenses 
 
Group II Offenses 
 
Group III Offenses 
(3)  First offense—Up to discharge 
 (g)  Unauthorized use or display of firearms, explosives, or weapons on City 
property; in addition, no employee, unless authorized as part of a job function, is 
permitted to have weapons or firearms, as defined in the Florida Statutes, in their 
personal possession while “on duty” with the City. 

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/




City of Miami Springs 
Office of the City Attorney 

Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 

 

201 Westward Drive - Miami Springs, Florida 33166 
Tel: (305) 805-5006  Fax: (305) 805-5028 

www.miamisprings-fl.gov 
 

          

MEMO  
 
TO:  Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney  
 
DATE: January 25, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Restriction on Impervious Coverings/Surfaces in Rear Yard Areas of 

Residential Homesites 
 

 
 Both the City Planner and City Building Official have advised that the City 
Code does not presently contain a provision to restrict the installation of ground 
coverings with impervious materials in the rear yard areas of residential homesites.   
 
 While front yard areas are currently protected by the code’s “Driveway 
Ordinance Provisions” (see code Section 150-016(E)), and the rear yard is 
somewhat protected by the “Accessory Building Coverage Limitations of Fifteen 
Percent” (150-041(2)), There are no provisions which would currently prevent the 
“covering over” of the remainder of rear yard areas of residential homesites with 
impervious materials. 
 
 Obviously, without proper restrictive provisions in place, properties with 
“covered over” rear yards would have no other places to drain than onto adjacent 
private and City properties.  It is exactly these types of conditions that increase the 
potential for flooding and long standing water. 
 
 Therefore, proposed for consideration is the following City Code ordinance 
amendment which provides appropriate restrictions for the control of rear yard lot 
coverage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/


Sec. 150-041. - R-1A district.  
 
(A)   Uses permitted. 
 (1)    Single-family dwelling. In no case shall there be more than one main 
building on a lot. 
 (2)   Accessory structures and uses incidental to the single-family dwelling 
when placed on the same lot or parcel of land and not used or operated 
commercially, including, private garages, children(s playhouses, tool sheds, and 
workshops. Accessory structures and uses such as servant(s quarters, guest 
houses, and any other type of dwelling or dwelling unit are prohibited. Accessory 
structures shall occupy not more than 15 percent of the area of the rear yard. 
Further, no more than an additional 15 percent of the “Total Rear Yard Area” may be 
covered by impervious ground level improvements such as concrete slabs or strips, 
patios, or pool decks.  Notwithstanding the permitted percentages of rear yard 
coverage, a minimum pervious area of five feet must be provided from the side and 
rear yard property lines into the rear yard area.  Additionally, up to a 10 percent 
credit towards the allowed rear yard coverage may be permitted by the use of 
approved pavers in coverage areas in accordance with the provisions of Code of 
Ordinance Section 150-016 (G)(7).Notwithstanding any other definition or provision 
contained within the Code of Ordinances to the contrary, the "total rear yard area" 
for the purposes of the calculations required for the determination of the percentage 
of rear yard occupancy shall include all areas of property on the site from the vertical 
walls of structure backward to the rear property line, regardless of whether any such 
wall is recessed behind the part of the structure from which the required rear yard 
setback is measured. Accessory structures and all constructed additions shall 
conform in design and character to that of the main building and be constructed in 
accordance with all other applicable provisions of City Ordinances. All additions 
constructed onto existing single-family residences shall conform to the minimum 
habitable space provisions set forth in the South Florida Building Code. The 
placement and location of all such accessory structures in rear yards of properties 
shall provide a separation of at least ten feet from the main building, from other 
accessory structures and from utility sheds, and shall not be located closer to the 
side yard boundary line than the required side yard setback for the main building, 
nor closer than five feet to the rear yard boundary line of the property. Each single-
family residential homesite may contain a maximum of two accessory structures, so 
long as such structures comply with the foregoing construction and location 
limitations and restrictions. Single-family residential homesites that already maintain 
a utility shed thereon may only contain one accessory structure which meets the 
construction and location limitations and restrictions previously set forth herein. 
 (3)  Signs. See Signs, § 150-030 
 















 
-----Original Message----- 
From: Sarah Vargas [mailto:miamispringsfarmersmarket@gmail.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, January 20, 2016 8:43 AM 
To: Ron Gorland 
Subject: Getting on the next agenda 
 
Hi Ron 
I'd like to get on the agenda for the next meeting if possible. This Great Tomato 
Festival is getting pretty big and I really can't do it with out the support of 
the city! 
 
I need to raise funds to cover about $1230 in additional expenses. 
Porta Pottys                           $180.00 
A large event tent                   $450.00 
Chairs                                    $150.00 
Tables                                    $150.00 
Fliers                                      $100.00 
Banners                                  $200.00 
 
 
 
I am looking for local sponsors to help with the costs also! Let me know if its 
possible for next Monday’s meeting. 
 
Regards, 
Sarah 
 

mailto:miamispringsfarmersmarket@gmail.com






 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: 305.805.5006 
Fax: 305.805.5028 

 
 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk  
 
VIA:  Elora R. Sakal, CMC, Deputy City Clerk 
 
DATE:  January 21, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Board of Parks and Parkways Recommendation 
 
 
************************************************************************************************************* 
 
At their last meeting on January 19, 2016, the Board of Parks and Parkways recommended 
the following to Council: 

 
1. Yard of the Month 

 
a) Yard of the Month - February, 2016 - 581 Labaron Drive 

 
By consensus, the Board agreed to nominate 581 Labaron Drive as the February, 
2016 yard of the month. 
 

b) Yard of the Month - March, 2016 - 72 Pinecrest Drive 
 
By consensus, the Board agreed to nominate 72 Pinecrest Drive as the March, 2016 
yard of the month. 
 

c) Yard of the Month - April, 2016 - 531 Hunting Lodge Drive 
 
By consensus, the Board agreed to nominate 531 Hunting Lodge Drive as the April, 
2016 yard of the month subject to the approval of the homeowners. 
 
 



           
Meeting Date: 1/25/2016  
 
To:   The Honorable Mayor Zavier Garcia and Members of the City Council 
 
From:   Ron Gorland, City Manager 
    
Subject: Full Closure of Circle for Blessed Trinity Worship and Concert Event  
 
 
 
Request:  
 
Mike Dominguez, event Chairperson, and Paul Zilio, Co-Chair, requests full closure of the Circle for 
subject event to be held on Saturday, May 7th, 2016 from 5pm until 11pm (per attached).  
 










	Agenda Summary - January 25, 2016
	Agenda Summary - p. 2
	Agenda Summary - p. 3

	3B) Proclamation presentation to “Pioneer” Betty Barnette Roper on her 90th Birthday
	3C) Yard of the Month Award for February 2016 – 581 La Baron Drive – Lionel andAlma Espinoza
	5A) January 11, 2016 – Regular Meeting
	8A) Approve an increase to the City's current open purchase order with The Anderson’s, Inc.
	9A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members
	9B) Major Project Updates
	10A) Resolution – Amending The Current Schedule Of Charges For Building, Plumbing, Electrical, Mechanical AndOther Related Permit Charges Or Fees; Effective Date 
	10B) Request that Council approve a Site Plan 
	10C) Request that Council gives direction to staff to clarify the future of certain electionprocesses
	10D) Request that Council consider a proposed amendment to Code Section 34-17:Employee Disciplinary Action
	10E) Request that Council consider restrictions on impervious coverings/surfaces in rearyard areas of residential homesites
	10F) Approve an expenditure to Mendoza Boulders for rock for Phase I - North Esplanade Canal BankRestoration between North Royal Poinciana Blvd. and Westward Drive 
	10G) Request for funding by Sarah Vargas for the Great Tomato Festival in the amount of $1,230.00
	10H) Board of Parks and Parkways Recommendations for the Yardof the Month 
	10I) Request by Blessed Trinity for full closure of the circle 
	11A) Consideration of Canceling/Rescheduling the February 8, 2016 Council Meeting

